

Regulation No. 14 (Safety-belt anchorages) **Proposal for the 08 series of amendments**

§1, *scope*, amend to read:

"This Regulation applies to:

- (a) Vehicles of categories M and N¹ with regard to their anchorages for safety-belts intended for adult occupants of forward-facing or rearward-facing or side-facing seats;
- (b) Vehicles of category M₁ **having more than one seating position** with regard to their ISOFIX anchorage systems and their ISOFIX top tether anchorages intended for child restraint systems. Other categories of vehicles fitted with ISOFIX anchorages have also to comply with the provisions of this Regulation.
- (c) Vehicles of any category with regard to their i-Size seating positions, if any are defined by the vehicle manufacturer."

Add a new § 2.33, to read:

"2.33. "Bucket seat" means a seat for the front passengers, having a non-adjustable seat back.

Such a seat shall have:

- (a) **Distinct side bolsters on both the cushion and the seat back that offer lateral support to the occupant**
- (b) **A seat back angle fixed in relation to the seat base."**

§ 5.3.8., replace by the following:

"5.3.8. Minimum number of ISOFIX positions to be provided:

5.3.8.1. **No ISOFIX position or ISOFIX low anchorages shall be required on bucket seats, as defined in Paragraph 2.33.**

5.3.8.2. **Vehicles with more than one seat row**

5.3.8.2.1. **Subject to the provisions of paragraphs 5.3.8.2.2. to 5.3.8.2.4 below,** Any vehicles of category M1 shall be equipped at least with two ISOFIX positions which satisfy the requirements of this Regulation.

At least two of the ISOFIX positions shall be equipped both with an ISOFIX anchorages system and an ISOFIX top tether anchorage.

The type and number of ISOFIX fixtures, defined in Regulation No. 16, which can be installed on each ISOFIX position are defined in Regulation No. 16.

At least one of the two ISOFIX positions shall be installed at the second seat row.

5.3.8.2.2. ~~Notwithstanding the provision of the paragraph 5.3.8.1.,~~ **Convertible vehicles as defined in Annex 7, paragraph 8.1.2.9.1.5. of the Consolidated Resolution on the Construction of Vehicles (R.E.3)² shall be fitted with at least two ISOFIX low anchorages. In case where an ISOFIX top tether anchorage is provided on such vehicles, it shall comply with the suitable provisions of this Regulation.**

¹ As defined in the Consolidated resolution on the Construction of vehicles (R.E.3), document ECE/TRANS/WP.29/78/Rev.2, para.2.

² Document ECE/TRANS/WP29/78/Rev.2, para.2.

5.3.8.2.3. ~~Notwithstanding paragraph 5.3.8.1, vehicles of category M₁ need to have~~ Only one ISOFIX position system is required in~~for~~ vehicles with:

- (a) Not more than two passenger doors and
- (b) A rear designated seating position for which interference with transmission and/or suspension components prevents the installation of ISOFIX anchorages according to the requirements of paragraph 5.2.3 and
- (c) Having a Power to mass ratio index (PMR) exceeding 140 according to the definitions within Regulation No. 51, and with the definition of the Power Mass Ratio (PMR):
$$PMR = (P_n / m_t) * 1000 \text{ kg/kW}$$
where:
P_n: maximum (rated) engine power expressed in kW³
m_{r0}: mass of a vehicle in running order expressed in kg
m_t = m_{r0} (for vehicles of category M₁)
and
- (d) Having an engine developing a maximum (rated) engine power greater than 200 kW³.

Such a vehicle needs to have only one ISOFIX anchorages system and an ISOFIX top tether anchorage at a front passenger designated seating position combined with an airbag deactivation device (if that seating position is fitted with an airbag) and a caution label indicating that there is no ISOFIX position system available at the second seat row.

5.3.8.2.4. If a vehicle is only equipped with one seat position per row, only one ISOFIX position is required in the passenger position. **In case where an ISOFIX top tether anchorage is provided on such vehicles, it shall comply with the suitable provisions of this Regulation.** However where it is not possible to install even the smallest forward-facing ISOFIX fixture (as defined in Regulation No. 16, Appendix 2, of Annex 17) in the passenger seating position then no ISOFIX position shall be required, provided that a "vehicle-specific" child restraint system is available **specified** for that vehicle.

5.3.8.3. **Vehicles with only one seat row**

5.3.8.3.1. **Subject to the provisions of paragraph 5.3.8.3.3 and 5.3.8.3.4., an ISOFIX position which satisfies the requirements of this Regulation shall be provided. This ISOFIX position shall be equipped with an ISOFIX anchorages system and an ISOFIX top tether anchorage.**

5.3.8.3.2. **Subject to the provisions of paragraph 5.3.8.3.3 and 5.3.8.3.4., Convertible vehicles as defined in paragraph 2.9.1.5. of the Consolidated Resolution on the Construction of Vehicles (R.E.3), shall be equipped with at least two ISOFIX low anchorages. Where an ISOFIX top tether anchorage is provided on such vehicles, it shall comply with the suitable provisions of this Regulation.**

5.3.8.3.3. **Where it is not possible to install even the smallest forward-facing ISOFIX fixture (as defined in Regulation No. 16, Appendix 2, of Annex 17) in the passenger seating position then no ISOFIX position or ISOFIX low anchorages shall be required, provided that a child restraint system is specified for that vehicle.**

5.3.8.3.4. **If the vehicle has a Power to Mass Ratio index (PMR according to the definitions in 5.3.8.2.3.) exceeding 140, no ISOFIX position or ISOFIX low anchorages shall be required.**

5.3.8.4. If an ISOFIX anchorages system is installed at a front seating position protected with a frontal airbag, a de-activation device for this airbag shall be fitted.

5.3.8.5. ~~Notwithstanding paragraph 5.3.8.1, i~~In case of integrated "built in" child restraint system(s) the number of ISOFIX positions to be provided shall be ~~at least two minus~~ **reduced by** the number of the integrated "built in" child restraint system(s) of mass groups 0, or 0+, or 1.

³ (Rated) engine power means the engine power expressed in kW (ECE) and measured by the ECE method pursuant to Regulation No. 85.

- 5.3.8.6. ~~Notwithstanding paragraph 5.3.8.1.,~~ ISOFIX positions are not required in ambulances or hearses as well as vehicles intended for use by the armed services, civil defence, fire services and forces responsible for maintaining public order.
- 5.3.8.7. Notwithstanding the provisions ~~above of paragraph 5.3.8.1. to 5.3.8.4.,~~ one or more of the mandatory ISOFIX positions may be replaced by i-Size seating positions."

"§14, amend to read:

14. Transitional provisions

- 14.1. As from the official date of entry into force of the 06 series of amendments, no Contracting Party applying this Regulation shall refuse to grant ECE approvals under this Regulation as amended by the 06 series of amendments.
- 14.2. As from 2 years after the enter into force of the 06 series of amendments to this Regulation, Contracting Parties applying this Regulation shall grant ECE type approvals only if the requirements of this Regulation, as amended by the 06 series of amendments, are satisfied.
- 14.3. As from 7 years after the enter into force of the 06 series of amendments to this Regulation, Contracting Parties applying this Regulation may refuse to recognize approvals which were not granted in accordance with the 06 series of amendments to this Regulation. However, **Contracting Parties applying this Regulation shall continue to accept** existing approvals of the vehicle categories which are not affected by the 06 series of amendments to this Regulation ~~shall remain valid and Contracting Parties applying this Regulation shall continue to accept them.~~
- 14.4. For vehicles not affected by paragraph 7.1.1. above, **Contracting Parties applying this Regulation shall continue to accept** approvals granted according to the 04 series of amendments to this Regulation ~~shall remain valid.~~
- 14.5. For vehicles not affected by Supplement 4 to the 05 series of amendments to this Regulation **Contracting Parties applying this Regulation shall continue to accept** the existing approvals ~~shall remain valid,~~ if they had been granted in compliance with the 05 series of amendments, up to its Supplement 3.
- 14.6. As from the official date of entry into force of Supplement 5 to the 05 series of amendments, no Contracting Party applying this Regulation shall refuse to grant approvals under this Regulation as modified by Supplement 5 to the 05 series of amendments.
- 14.7. For vehicles not affected by Supplement 5 to the 05 series of amendments to this Regulation **Contracting Parties applying this Regulation shall continue to accept** the existing approvals ~~shall remain valid,~~ if they had been granted in compliance with the 05 series of amendments, up to its Supplement 3.
- 14.8. As from 20 February 2005 for vehicles of category M₁, Contracting Parties applying this Regulation shall grant approvals only if the requirements of this Regulation, as amended by Supplement 5 to the 05 series of amendments, are satisfied.
- 14.9. As from 20 February 2007 for vehicles of category M₁, Contracting Parties applying this Regulation may refuse to recognize approvals which were not granted in accordance with Supplement 5 to the 05 series of amendments to this Regulation.
- 14.10. As from 16 July 2006 for vehicles of category N, Contracting Parties applying this Regulation shall grant approval only if the vehicle type satisfies the requirements of this Regulation as amended by the Supplement 5 to the 05 series of amendments.
- 14.11. As from 16 July 2008 for vehicles of category N, Contracting Parties applying this Regulation may refuse to recognize approvals not granted in accordance with Supplement 5 to the 05 series of amendments to this Regulation.

- 14.12. As from the official date of entry into force of the 07 series of amendments, no Contracting Party applying this Regulation shall refuse to grant approvals under this Regulation as amended by the 07 series of amendments.
- 14.13. As from 24 months after the date of entry into force of the 07 series of amendments, Contracting Parties applying this Regulation shall grant approvals only if the requirements of this Regulation, as amended by the 07 series of amendments, are satisfied.
- 14.14. As from 36 months after the date of entry into force of the 07 series of amendments, Contracting Parties applying this Regulation may refuse to recognize approvals which were not granted in accordance with the 07 series of amendments to this Regulation.
- 14.15. Notwithstanding paragraphs 14.13. and 14.14., **Contracting Parties applying the Regulation shall continue to accept** approvals of the vehicle categories to the preceding series of amendments to the Regulation which are not affected by the 07 series of amendments ~~shall remain valid and Contracting Parties applying the Regulation shall continue to accept them.~~
- 14.16. As long as there are no requirements concerning the compulsory fitting of safety-belt anchorages for folding seats in their national requirements at the time of acceding to this Regulation, Contracting Parties may continue to allow this non-fitment for the purpose of national approval and in this case these bus categories cannot be type approved under this Regulation.
- 14.17. As from the official date of entry into force of Supplement 2 to the 07 series of amendments, no Contracting Party applying this Regulation shall refuse to grant type approval under this Regulation as amended by Supplement 2 to the 07 series of amendments.
- 14.18. As from 12 months after the official date of entry into force of Supplement 2 to the 07 series of amendments, Contracting Parties applying this Regulation shall grant type approvals only to those types of vehicle which comply with the requirements of this Regulation as amended by Supplement 2 to the 07 series of amendments.
- 14.19. Contracting Parties applying this Regulation shall not refuse to grant extensions of approvals, even if Supplement 2 to the 07 series of amendments is not fulfilled.
- 14.20. As from the official date of entry into force of the 08 series of amendments, no Contracting Party applying this UN Regulation shall refuse to grant or refuse to accept UN type approvals under this UN Regulation as amended by the 08 series of amendments.**
- 14.21. As from 1 September 2019, Contracting Parties applying this Regulation shall grant type approvals only to those types of vehicle which comply with the requirements of this Regulation as amended by the 08 series of amendments.**
- 14.22. Contracting Parties applying the Regulation shall continue to accept approvals of the vehicle categories to the preceding series of amendments to the Regulation, granted before 1 September 2019.**
- 14.23. Contracting Parties applying this UN Regulation shall not refuse to grant extensions of UN type approvals for existing types which have been granted on the basis of those provisions already covered by the approval."**
